
 

 

Planning and Highways 
Committee 
 
Tuesday 18 November 2014 at 2.00 pm 

 
To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone 
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH 

 
The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Membership 
  

Councillors Alan Law (Chair), David Baker, Jack Clarkson, Tony Damms, 
Roger Davison, Tony Downing (Deputy Chair), Ibrar Hussain, Bob Johnson, 
Bryan Lodge, Roy Munn, Peter Price, Denise Reaney and Joyce Wright 
 
Substitute Members 
 
In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the 
above Committee Members as and when required. 
 
 

  

 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING 

 
The Planning and Highways Committee is responsible for planning applications, 
Tree Preservation Orders, enforcement action and some highway, footpath, road 
safety and traffic management issues.  
 
A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council’s website at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if 
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance.  The 
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between 
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday.  You may not be allowed to see some reports 
because they contain confidential information.  These items are usually marked * on 
the agenda.  
 
Recording is allowed at Planning and Highways Committee meetings under the 
direction of the Chair of the meeting.  Please see the website or contact Democratic 
Services for details of the Council’s protocol on audio/visual recording and 
photography at council meetings. 
 
Planning and Highways Committee meetings are normally open to the public but 
sometimes the Committee may have to discuss an item in private.  If this happens, 
you will be asked to leave.  Any private items are normally left until last. 
 
Further information on this or any of the agenda items can be obtained by speaking 
to Martyn Riley on 0114 273 4008 or email martyn.riley@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

FACILITIES 

 
There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the 
Town Hall.  Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms. 
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the 
side to the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

 



 

 

 

PLANNING AND HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE AGENDA 
18 NOVEMBER 2014 

 
Order of Business 

 
1. Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements  
2. Apologies for Absence  
3. Exclusion of Public and Press  
 To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the 

press and public 
 

4. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1 - 4) 
 Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be 

considered at the meeting 
 

5. Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 8) 
 Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 28 October 

2014 
 

6. Site Visit  
 To agree a date for any site visits required in connection with 

planning applications prior to the next meeting of the Committee 
 

7. Applications Under Various Acts/Regulations (Pages 9 - 44) 
 Report of the Director of Regeneration and Development 

Services 
 
 

8. Enforcement of Planning Control:  414 London Road (Pages 45 - 52) 
 Report of the Director of Regeneration and Development 

Services 
 

9. Record of Planning Appeal Submissions and Decisions (Pages 53 - 56) 
 Report of the Director of Regeneration and Development 

Services 
 
 

10. Date of Next Meeting  
 The next meeting of the Committee will be held on 9 December 

2014 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS 

 
If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of 
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI) 
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:  
 

• participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become 
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate 
further in any discussion of the business, or  

• participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.  

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a 
member of the public. 

You must: 
 

• leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct) 

• make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any 
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or 
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before 
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes 
apparent. 

• declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’s Monitoring Officer within 28 
days, if the DPI is not already registered. 

 
If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable 
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if 
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.  
 

• Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain, 
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes. 
 

• Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your 
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards 
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a 
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 
*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the 
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests. 

 

• Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or 
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial 
interest) and your council or authority –  
 
- under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 
executed; and  

- which has not been fully discharged. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 1



 

 

• Any beneficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, 
have and which is within the area of your council or authority. 

 

• Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month 
or longer. 
 

• Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
- the landlord is your council or authority; and  
- the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a 
beneficial interest. 

 

• Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in 
securities of a body where -  

 

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of 
your council or authority; and  
 

(b) either - 
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or  

- if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your 
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you 
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to 
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest 
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest 
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is 
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity; 
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).  

You have a personal interest where – 

• a decision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting 
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements 
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with 
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the 
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or 
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s 
administrative area, or 
 

• it relates to or is likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but 
are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with 
whom you have a close association. 

 

Page 2



 

Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the 
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to 
you previously. 
 
You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be 
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to 
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take. 
 
In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member 
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.  

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours 
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and 
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought.  The Monitoring 
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’s Standards 
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation. 

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Interim Director of Legal and 
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk. 
 
 

Page 3



Page 4

This page is intentionally left blank



 
S H E F F I E L D    C I T Y     C O U N C I L 

 

 
Planning and Highways Committee 

 
Meeting held 28 October 2014 

 
PRESENT: Councillors Tony Downing (Deputy Chair), Jack Clarkson,  

Ibrar Hussain, Bob Johnson, Joyce Wright, Roy Munn, Tony Damms 
(Substitute Member) and Andrew Sangar (Substitute Member) 
 

 
   

 
1.  
 

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

1.1 Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Peter Price and David 
Baker and Councillors Tony Damms and Andrew Sangar attended the meeting as 
the duly appointed substitutes, respectively. Apologies for absence were also 
received from the Chair, Councillor Alan Law and Councillor Bryan Lodge but no 
substitutes were appointed. 

 
2.  
 

EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS 
 

2.1 No items were identified where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press 
and public. 

 
3.  
 

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3.1 Councillor Jack Clarkson declared a personal interest in a retrospective planning 
application for the retention and re-positioning of existing refrigeration unit to rear 
elevation and encasement in sound reduction enclosure (amended description) 
(as per amended drawings received on 7 August 2014 and 4 September 2014) at 
Village News, 176-178 Main Street, Grenoside (Case No. 14/01042/FUL) as a 
member of Stocksbridge Town Council. 

 
4.  
 

MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING 
 

4.1 The minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 7 October 2014 were 
approved as a correct record. 

 
5.  
 

SITE VISIT 
 

5.1 RESOLVED: That the Director of Regeneration and Development Services, in 
liaison with the Chair, be authorised to make arrangements for a site visit on 
Monday 17 November 2014, in connection with any planning applications 
requiring a visit by Members prior to the next meeting of the Committee. 

 
6.  
 

APPLICATIONS UNDER VARIOUS ACTS/REGULATIONS 
 

6.1 RESOLVED: That (a) the applications now submitted for permission to develop 
land under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and the Regulations made 
thereunder and for consent under the Town and Country Planning (Control of 

Agenda Item 5

Page 5



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 28.10.2014 

Advertisements) Regulations 1989, be decided, granted or refused as stated in 
the report to this Committee for this date in respect of Case Nos. 14/03379/FUL 
and 14/03331/FUL, and other applications considered be amended as in the 
minutes of this meeting, and the requisite notices issued; the granting of any 
permission or consent shall not constitute approval, permission or consent by this 
Committee or the Council for any other purpose; 

  
 (b) following consideration of an additional representation, as outlined in a 

supplementary report circulated at the meeting, and following consideration of 
representations from the agent for the applicant in favour of the application, an 
application for planning permission for extension of opening hours until 03:30 
every day - application to vary condition 2 (opening hours) of planning permission 
no. 98/00186/FUL (use of ground floor as café/takeaway) at Oasis Pizza, 204 
Whitham Road (Case No. 14/03284/FUL) be granted, conditionally; 

  
 (c) following consideration of additional representations, and, subject to an 

amendment to condition 6 to read ‘No goods, materials or apparatus for the 
movement and handling of goods, of any description, shall be stored or displayed 
wholly or partly outside the building within the site of the development,’ as outlined 
in a supplementary report circulated at the meeting, and following consideration of 
representations from the Chair of Carterknowle and Millhouses Community Group, 
two local residents and a local Ward Councillor opposing the application, and, 
notwithstanding the officer’s recommendation, an application for planning 
permission for demolition of existing building, erection of a new convenience store 
with 3 x 2 bed apartments above including garages at lower ground floor level and 
external terrace areas to the first floor and roof area at Carterknowle Food and 
Wine, 264 Carterknowle Road (Case No. 14/01453/FUL) be refused as the 
Committee considered that the development would create additional problems in 
respect of on street parking and servicing and have a detrimental impact on 
pedestrian and road safety which was contrary to Policy H14(d) of the Unitary 
Development Plan; 

  
 (d) following consideration of additional representations, as outlined in a 

supplementary report circulated at the meeting, representations from a local 
resident opposing the application and the agent for the applicant in favour of the 
application, and, notwithstanding the officer’s recommendation, consideration of 
an application for retrospective planning permission for the retention and re-
positioning of existing refrigeration unit to rear elevation and encasement in sound 
reduction enclosure (amended description) (as per amended drawings received 
on 7 August 2014 and 4 September 2014) at Village News, 176-178 Main Street, 
Grenoside be deferred pending additional advice from the Environmental 
Protection Service on appropriate noise levels and what constituted statutory 
noise nuisance; and 

  
 (e) following consideration of additional representations and the inclusion of an 

additional plan in the list of approved documents, as outlined in a supplementary 
report circulated at the meeting, representations from a local Ward Councillor and 
three local residents opposing the application and the applicant’s agent in favour 
of the application, and, notwithstanding the officers recommendation, an 
application for planning permission for the demolition of existing building and 

Page 6



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 28.10.2014 

erection of 4 dwellinghouses (as per amended drawings received 19 August 2014) 
at site of Clear Line Creevela Works, Parsonage Street (Case No. 14/00831/FUL) 
be refused as the Committee considered that the development would have a 
detrimental impact on parking and road safety in the area and would therefore be 
contrary to Policy H14(d) of the Unitary Development Plan. 

  
 (Note. An application for planning permission for change of use to increase 

opening hours of café to between 0800 hours and 1800 hours (Monday to Friday) 
and between 0900 hours and 1600 hours (Saturday, Sunday and Bank Holidays) 
and for the retention of 2 Microwave Ovens, 1 Safety Fat Fryer and 1 Griddle to 
be used in the café (application under Section 73 to vary condition 3 (hours of 
use) and condition 6 (cooking equipment) as per planning permission 
13/02171/CHU – use of dwellinghouse as a restaurant/café (class A3) on the 
Ground Floor with a flat at first floor level (amended description) at Village News, 
176-178 Main Street, Grenoside (Case No. 14/01031/CHU) was withdrawn from 
consideration at the meeting pending further discussions with interested parties.                                            

 
 
7.  
 

QUARTERLY OVERVIEW OF ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITY 
 

7.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Director of Regeneration and 
Development Services providing a quarterly update of progress on the work being 
undertaken by the enforcement team within the City. 

 
8.  
 

QUARTERLY UPDATE OF ENFORCEMENT CASES IN THE CITY CENTRE 
AND EAST AREA OF THE CITY 
 

8.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Director of Regeneration and 
Development Services providing an update on the progress of enforcement cases 
being undertaken with respect to developments and advertisements in the City 
Centre and East areas of the City. 

 
9.  
 

QUARTERLY UPDATE OF ENFORCEMENT CASES IN THE SOUTH AREA OF 
THE CITY 
 

9.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Director of Regeneration and 
Development Services providing an update on the progress of enforcement cases 
being undertaken with respect to developments and advertisements in the South 
area of the City. 

 
10.  
 

QUARTERLY UPDATE OF ENFORCEMENT CASES IN THE WEST AND 
NORTH AREA OF THE CITY 
 

10.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Director of Regeneration and 
Development Services providing an update on the progress of enforcement cases 
being undertaken with respect to developments and advertisements in the West 
and North area of the City. 

 
11.  
 

RECORD OF PLANNING APPEAL SUBMISSIONS AND DECISIONS 
 

Page 7



Meeting of the Planning and Highways Committee 28.10.2014 

11.1 The Committee received and noted a report of the Director of Regeneration and 
Development Services detailing (a) the planning appeals recently submitted to the 
Secretary of State and (b) the outcome of recent planning appeals, along with a 
summary of the reasons given by the Secretary of State in his decision.   

 
12.  
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
 

12.1 It was noted that the next meeting of the Committee will be held on Tuesday 18 
November 2014 at 2.00 pm at the Town Hall. 

 

Page 8



 

 

 

  
Report of:   Director of Regeneration and Development Services 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    18/11/2014 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Applications under various acts/regulations 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Lucy Bond 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
 
 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations   
(Reports should include a statement of the reasons for the decisions proposed) 
 
 
 
Recommendations: 
 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 
 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 

 

 

 

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Planning and Highways Committee 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



  

Page 10



Application No. Location Page No. 

 

 

14/03048/FUL (Formerly PP-
03586255) 

LiDL Supermarket 
Castlebeck Avenue And 322 And 324 Prince Of 
Wales Road 
Sheffield 
S2 1DS 

13 

 

 

14/02725/FUL  Maggie May's 
23 - 27 Trippet Lane 
Sheffield 
S1 4FG 

32 

 

 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
 
Report Of The Head Of Planning 
To the Planning and Highways Committee 
Date Of Meeting: 18/11/2014 
 
LIST OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR DECISION OR INFORMATION 
 
*NOTE* Under the heading “Representations” a Brief Summary of Representations 
received up to a week before the Committee date is given (later representations 
will be reported verbally).  The main points only are given for ease of reference.  
The full letters are on the application file, which is available to members and the 
public and will be at the meeting. 
 
 
 

 
Case Number 

 
14/03048/FUL (Formerly PP-03586255) 
 

Application Type Full Planning Application 
 

Proposal Demolition of existing food retail unit and two 
dwellinghouses and erection of new food retail unit with 
associated car parking accommodation, landscaping 
works, amended access  and relocation of electricity 
sub-station (re-submission) (Amended as per plans 
received on 29/10/2014) 
 

Location LiDL Supermarket 
Castlebeck Avenue And  
322 And 324 Prince Of Wales Road 
Sheffield 
S2 1DS 
 

Date Received 18/08/2014 
 

Team City Centre and East 
 

Applicant/Agent Nathaniel Lichfield And Partners 
 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 

 
Subject to: 
 
1 The development shall be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

from the date of this decision. 
  

Page 13



 

 Reason:  In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country 
Planning Act. 

 
2 The development must be carried out in complete accordance with the 

following approved documents: 
  
 550/P110 Rev D (Proposed External Elevations); 
 550/P118 Rev B (Proposed Surfacing Treatment) and 
 550/P111 Rev J (Proposed Site Plan) all received on 29/10/2014 
  
 550/P112 Rev B (Floor Plans) and 
 550/P113 Rev B (Roof Plan) received on 15/8/2014 
  
 Reason:  In order to define the permission. 
 
3 Details of all proposed external materials and finishes, including samples 

when requested by the Local Planning Authority, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before that part of the 
development is commenced. Thereafter, the development shall be carried 
out in accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason:  In order to ensure an appropriate quality of development. 
 
4 Large scale details, including materials and finishes, at a minimum of 1:20 of 

the items listed below shall be approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before that part of the  development commences: 

  
 Windows/glazed screens 
 Eaves  
 Brickwork detailing 
 Roof 
 Rainwater goods 
  
 Thereafter, the works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved 

details. 
  
 Reason:  In order to ensure an appropriate quality of development. 
 
5 A comprehensive and detailed hard and soft landscape scheme for the site 

shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority before the development is commenced, or within an alternative 
timeframe to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
6 The approved landscape works shall be implemented prior to the 

development being brought into use or within an alternative timescale to be 
first approved by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the landscaped 
areas shall be retained and they shall be cultivated and maintained for a 

Page 14



 

period of 5 years from the date of implementation and any plant failures 
within that 5 year period shall be replaced. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
7 Any plant failures that occur within 5 years from the date of implementation 

shall be replaced in accordance with the approved details. 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
8 Notwithstanding the submitted plans, details of a suitable means of site 

boundary treatment shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced, or an 
alternative timeframe to be agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
The building shall not be used unless such means of site boundary 
treatment has been provided in accordance with the approved details and 
thereafter such means of site enclosure shall be retained. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
9 The proposed acoustic fence shall be installed before the development is 

brought into use.  Prior to its installation full details of the acoustic fence 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority.  The discount retail store hereby approved shall not be used 
unless the acoustic fence has been provided in accordance with the 
approved details and thereafter the fence shall be retained. 

  
 Reason:   In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
10 The discount retail store hereby approved shall not be open to the public 

outside the hours of: 
  
 7am - 10pm Mondays to Saturdays 
 10am - 4pm on Sundays and Bank Holidays 
  
 Deliveries to the building shall only be carried out between 0700 hours and 

2200 hours on Monday to Saturday and between 0800 hours and 2100 
hours on Sundays and Public Holidays.  

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
11 No externally mounted plant or equipment for heating, cooling or ventilation 

purposes, nor grilles, ducts, vents for similar internal equipment, shall be 
fitted to the building unless full details thereof have first been submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and once installed 
such plant or equipment should not be altered. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 

Page 15



 

 
12 Plant and equipment shall be designed to ensure noise levels do not exceed 

5dBA (LA90) below background noise levels measured at the site boundary  
  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
13 No amplified sound or live music shall be played either within or without the 

premises nor shall loudspeakers be fixed at any time outside the building. 
  
 Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
14 No movement, sorting or removal of waste bottles, materials or other 

articles, nor movement of skips or bins shall be carried on outside the 
building within the site of the development between 2200 hours and 0700 
hours (on the following day) Sundays to Fridays and between 2200 hours 
and 0900 hours (on the following day) on Saturdays and the day before a 
Public Holiday. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
15 Surface water and foul drainage shall drain to separate systems. 
  
 Reason:  To ensure satisfactory drainage arrangements. 
  
16 No development shall take place until details of the proposed means of 

disposal of foul and surface water drainage, including details of any 
balancing works and off-site works, have been submitted to and approved 
by the local planning authority. 

  
 Reason:  To ensure that the development can be properly drained 
  
17 Prior to being discharged into any watercourse, surface water sewer or 

soakaway system all surface water drainage from parking areas and 
hardstandings shall be passed through a petrol/oil interceptor designed and 
constructed in accordance with details to be approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:  Prevent pollution of the water environment. 
 
18 No piped discharge of surface water from the application site shall take 

place until surface water drainage works including off-site works have been 
completed in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason:  To ensure satisfactory drainage arrangements. 
 

Page 16



 

19 The surface water discharge from the site shall be reduced by at least 30% 
compared to the existing peak flow and detailed proposals for surface water 
disposal, including calculations to demonstrate the reduction, must be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
the commencement of the development, or an alternative timeframe to be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. In the event that the 
existing discharge arrangements are not known, or if the site currently 
discharges to a different outlet, then a discharge rate of 5 litres/hectare 
should be demonstrated. The development shall thereafter be carried out in 
accordance with the approved details. 

  
 Reason:  In order to mitigate against the risk of flooding. 
  
20 The building shall not be used unless the car parking accommodation for 68 

cars as shown on the approved plans has been provided in accordance with 
those plans and thereafter such car parking accommodation shall be 
retained for the sole purpose intended. 

  
 Reason:  To ensure satisfactory parking provision in the interests of traffic 

safety and the amenities of the locality. 
 
21 No development shall commence until details of the means of ingress and 

egress for vehicles engaged in the construction of the development have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Such details shall include the arrangements for restricting the vehicles to the 
approved ingress and egress points.  Ingress and egress for such vehicles 
shall be obtained only at the approved points. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the locality. 
 
22 No demolition and/or construction works shall be carried out unless 

equipment is provided for the effective cleaning of the wheels and bodies of 
vehicles leaving the site so as to prevent the depositing of mud and waste 
on the highway. Full details of the proposed cleaning equipment shall be 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before it is installed. 

  
 Reason:  In the interests of the safety of road users. 
 
23 There shall be no gates or barriers erected at the means of access to the 

site. 
  
 Reason:  To ensure access is available at all times. 
 
24 The building shall not be used unless provision has been made within the 

site for accommodation of delivery/service vehicles in accordance with 
approved plans. Thereafter, all such areas shall be retained free of all 
obstructions, including the storage, display and depositing of materials, 
packaging or other objects so that the service yard is fully available for the 
parking, turning and manoeuvring of delivery/service vehicles. 

  

Page 17



 

 Reason:  In the interests of highway safety and the amenities of the locality. 
 
25 The building shall not be used unless the cycle parking accommodation as 

shown on the approved plans has been provided in accordance with those 
plans and, thereafter, such cycle parking accommodation shall be retained 

  
 Reason: In the interests of delivering sustainable forms of transport, in 

accordance with the Transport Policies in the adopted Unitary Development 
Plan for Sheffield and Core Strategy. 

 
26 The development shall not be begun until details have been submitted to 

and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority of arrangements 
which have been entered into which will secure the reconstruction of the 
footways adjoining the site before the development is brought into use. The 
detailed materials specification shall have first been approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In order to ensure an appropriate quality of development. 
 
27 The building shall not be used until a Delivery Management Plan detailing 

the supervision of delivery operations has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  Thereafter the Delivery 
Management Plan shall be adhered to and must not be altered without the 
prior approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of pedestrian safety. 
 
28 No development shall commence until a report has been submitted to and 

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority identifying how a 
minimum of 10% of the predicted energy needs of the of the completed 
development being obtained from decentralised and renewable or low 
carbon energy. 

  
 Any agreed renewable or low carbon energy equipment, connection to 

decentralised or low carbon energy sources shall have been installed before 
any part of the development is occupied and a post-installation report shall 
have been submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority to demonstrate that the agreed measures have been installed.  
Thereafter the agreed equipment, connection or measures shall be retained 
in use and maintained for the lifetime of the development. 

  
 Reason: In order to ensure that new development makes energy savings in 

the interests of mitigating the effects of climate change, in accordance with 
Sheffield Development Framework Core Strategy Policy CS65. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 

Attention is drawn to the following directives: 
 
1. You are required, as part of this development, to carry out works within the 

public highway.  You must not start any of this work until you have received 
a signed consent under the Highways Act 1980.  An 
administration/inspection fee will be payable and a Bond required as part of 
the consent. 

  
 You should apply for a consent to: - 
  
 Highways Adoption Group 
 Development Services 
 Sheffield City Council 
 Howden House, 1 Union Street  
 Sheffield  
 S1 2SH 
  
 For the attention of Mr S Turner 
 Tel: (0114) 27 34383 
  
 
2. You are required as part of this development, to carry out works within the 

public highway: As part of the requirements of the New Roads and Street 
Works Act 1991 (Section 54), 3rd edition of the Code of Practice 2007, you 
must give at least three months written notice to the Council, informing us of 
the date and extent of works you propose to undertake. 

  
 The notice should be sent to:- 
  
 Sheffield City Council 
 2-10 Carbrook Hall Road 
 Sheffield  
 S9 2DB 
  
 For the attention of Mr P Vickers 
  
 Please note failure to give the appropriate notice may lead to a fixed penalty 

notice being issued and any works on the highway being suspended. 
 
3. Before the development is commenced, a dilapidation survey of the 

highways adjoining the site shall be jointly undertaken with the Council and 
the results of which agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.  Any 
deterioration in the condition of the highway attributable to the construction 
works shall be rectified in accordance with a scheme of work to be agreed 
with the Local Planning Authority. 

 
4. As the proposed development abuts the public highway you are advised to 

contact the Highways Co-ordination Group on Sheffield 2736677, prior to 
commencing works.  The Co-ordinator will be able to advise you of any pre-

Page 19



 

commencement condition surveys, permits, permissions or licences you 
may require in order to carry out your works. 

 
5. The applicant is advised that noise and vibration from demolition and 

construction sites can be controlled by Sheffield City Council under Section 
60 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974.  As a general rule, where residential 
occupiers are likely to be affected, it is expected that noisy works of 
demolition and construction will be carried out during normal working hours, 
i.e. 0800 to 1800 hours Monday to Friday, and 0800 to 1300 hours on 
Saturdays with no working on Sundays or Public Holidays.  Further advice, 
including a copy of the Council's Code of Practice for Minimising Nuisance 
from Construction and Demolition Sites is available from the Environmental 
Protection Service, 2-10 Carbrook Hall Road, Sheffield, S9 2DB: Tel - 0114 
2734651. 

 
6. The applicant should install any external lighting to the site to meet the 

guidance provided by the Institution of Lighting Professionals in their 
document "Guidance Notes for the Reduction of Obtrusive Light (GN01: 
2011)". This is to prevent obtrusive light causing disamenity to neighbours. 
The Guidance Notes are available for download from the Institution of 
Lighting Professionals' website, or telephone (01788) 576492.  

 
7. The applicant is advised that responsibility for the safe development and 

occupancy of the site rests with the developer. The Local Planning Authority 
has evaluated the risk assessment and remediation scheme on the basis of 
the information available to it, but there may be contamination within the 
land, which has not been discovered by the survey/assessment. 

 
8. The developer is advised that in the event that any un-natural ground or 

unexpected contamination is encountered at any stage of the development 
process, the Local Planning Authority should be notified immediately. This 
will enable consultation with the Environmental Protection Service to ensure 
that the site is developed appropriately for its intended use. Any necessary 
remedial measures will need to be identified and subsequently agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

 
9. From the 6th April 2008, the Town and Country Planning (Fees for 

Applications and Deemed Applications) Regulations 2008 require that all 
requests for confirmation of compliance with planning conditions require a 
fee payable to the Local Planning Authority.  An application to the Local 
Planning Authority will be required using the new national standard 
application forms.  Printable forms can be found at 
www.sheffield.gov.uk/planning or apply online at 
www.planningportal.gov.uk.  The charge for this type of application is £97 or 
£28 if it relates to a condition on a householder application for development. 

  
 For Listed Building Consent and Conservation Area Consent applications an 

application for confirmation of compliance with planning conditions is still 
required but there is no fee. 

 

Page 20



 

10. The Local Planning Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and 
proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation 
to dealing with a planning application. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 

Site Location 
 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 10018816 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 22



 

LOCATION AND PROPOSAL 

The application site is located on Castlebeck Avenue, between Alison Crescent 

and Prince of Wales Road.  It comprises of the site of an existing Lidl supermarket 

and its car park, located in a designated Business Area, plus the site of a pair of 

semi-detached dwellinghouses at 322 and 324 Prince of Wales Road, which are 

situated within a designated Housing Area as defined in the Unitary Development 

Plan (UDP).   

The supermarket, a single storey building located at the southern end of the site, is 

accessed by car from Alison Crescent.  As the land slopes gently down from south 

to north, the car park, at the northern end of the site, is raised approximately 1.5 to 

2 metres above Castlebeck Avenue. On the northern side of Castlebeck Avenue is 

a grassed open space area and, beyond, the rear of semi-detached 

dwellinghouses on Pipworth Road. 

To the east of Alison Crescent is Normancroft Court, a single and two storey 

residential development finished in a dark buff brick. A landscape strip along the 

eastern side of Alison Crescent provides some screening to the houses on 

Normancroft Court. 

To the south of the supermarket the site bounds the Alison Business Centre, a 

small complex of single and two storey red brick buildings which provide 

accommodation and business support for new and starter businesses.  The Alison 

Centre is managed by the Manor Development Company. 

Bonsall Lane runs along the western site boundary.  It is a private road providing 

access to the rear of red brick properties on Prince of Wales Road, including 

premises within the Local Shopping Centre towards the southern end of the 

application site. 

In January 2014 an application for the demolition of the existing Lidl store and a 

pair of neighbouring semi-detached dwellinghouses (at 322 and 324 Prince of 

Wales Road), and their replacement with a new store in the same location, plus the 

extension of the car park and erection of a new electricity sub-station was refused 

at committee as it was considered the development failed to respond to the Prince 

of Wales Road and Castlebeck Road frontages in a sufficiently positive manner, 

while the loss of the two semi-detached houses and their replacement with surface 

level car parking further diminished the sense of arrival in this key gateway 

location.  Moreover, the proposed materials were not considered to reflect local 

character or to be of sufficient quality.  In addition, the existing conflict between 

pedestrians accessing the store and the main vehicular and service access that 

crosses directly in front of the entrance remained unresolved and it was felt that the 

extension of the car park up to the boundary of 320 Prince of Wales Road could 

have a harmful impact upon the amenities of its occupants. 

Page 23



 

Following lengthy negotiations, in which Lidl’s agents looked at a variety of options 

for the site, planning permission is now sought for an amended scheme.  The 

proposals, which again involve the demolition of the existing Lidl store and the pair 

of semi-detached dwellinghouses at 322 and 324 Prince of Wales Road, include a 

replacement store plus an extension to the car park, landscape works, 

amendments to the access and the relocation of the electricity sub-station as 

described in more detail below. 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

13/03286/FUL An application for the demolition of an existing food retail  

   unit and two dwellinghouses and the erection of a new  

   food retail unit with associated car parking    

   accommodation, landscaping works and the relocation of  

   an electricity sub-station was refused at committee on  

   29th January 2014 for the following reasons: 

1. The Local Planning Authority considers that the proposed 

development, by reason of the siting and external materials 

of the store, the extension of the car park and the 

unresolved conflict between pedestrians and vehicles, 

gives rise to a poor design which is detrimental to the 

character of the local townscape and contrary to the aims 

of Policy CS74 of the Core Strategy, the Manor 

Neighbourhood Development Framework and the National 

Planning Policy Framework. 

2. The Local Planning Authority considers that the 

development would be harmful to the amenities of the 

occupiers of the neighbouring residential property owing to 

the noise and exhaust fumes from vehicles in close 

proximity to the site boundary as a result of the extension 

of the car park. In these respects the proposal is contrary 

to Policy H14 of the Unitary Development Plan and the 

National Planning Policy Framework. 

12/00657/FULR In April 2012, an application to extend the time limit for 

implementation of 09/00300/FUL (single-storey rear extension, 

relocation of loading area and single-storey front extension to 

retail store) was approved. 

11/00549/HOARD Consent was refused in April 2011 for the erection of a 

freestanding double sided 48-sheet. 

Page 24



 

09/00300/FUL Planning permission was granted for the erection of a single 

storey rear extension, relocation of the loading area and a 

single-storey front extension to retail store in April 2009. 

09/00066/FUL In March 2009, an application under section 73, to remove 

restrictions on delivery hours as imposed by condition 10 of 

application 94/01361/FUL, was granted.  The amended 

condition allows deliveries one hour either side of the store 

opening hours and reads: 

 Delivery of goods to the site shall be restricted to between 

0700 hours and 2000 hours Mondays to Saturdays and 0900 

hours and 1700 hours Sundays and Public Holidays. 

05/04855/FUL Permission was granted in March 2006 for a single storey rear 

extension and the relocation of the loading area. 

94/01361/FUL In September 1995, planning permission was granted for the 

erection of a retail store with associated car parking 

accommodation and provision of a pedestrian link to Prince of 

Wales Road and alterations to 300 Prince of Wales Road.  

 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 

No representations were received in relation to the amended proposals from the 

occupiers of neighbouring properties.  A key issue for neighbours in relation to the 

last submission was the relocation of an electricity substation adjacent to 320 

Prince of Wales Road.  It is now proposed to relocate the substation towards the 

southern end of the site adjacent Bonsall Lane. 

Local member Cllr Terry Fox requested that Lidl consider including a Paypoint 

machine in the new store to serve the local community. 

Lidl explained that they do not currently have Paypoint facilities within any of  

their UK stores across the UK, though they would be happy to review the need and 

scope to provide a Paypoint facility as and when the replacement store is open to 

customers.  

They pointed out, however, that there are two Paypoint facilities in the local area, 

at Kiran’s Convenience Store and the Parkway Service Station.  They also felt that 

the provision of a Paypoint facility within the new Lidl store might reduce the 

prospect of people continuing to use existing shops and services in the Local 

Centre. 

 

Page 25



 

 

Lidl undertook their own consultation with the local community in relation to their 

revised proposals and submitted a Community Consultation Statement with their 

planning application describing the process in detail.  Their consultations included: 

- the distribution of a leaflet to around 7,400 households in the area 

surrounding the site;  

- press releases; 

- the development of a project website; and  

- holding a public exhibition in relation to the proposals. 

Lidl note that their community consultation demonstrated significant support for the 

redevelopment of the site to provide a replacement foodstore, with the vast 

majority of responses both in favour of the proposals (94%) and in support of the 

design and layout of the proposed store (92%). 

 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

Policy Context 

The majority of the application site lies within a designated Business Area as 

defined in the UDP.  Policy IB9 of the UDP (Conditions on Development in Industry 

and Business Areas) requires new development in such areas to be well designed 

with buildings of a scale and nature appropriate to the site.  It also advises that new 

development should not cause residents to suffer from unacceptable living 

conditions. 

The pair of semi-detached houses in the north west corner of the site proposed for 

demolition are located on the edge of a designated Housing Area.  Policy H14 of 

the UDP (Conditions on Development in Housing Areas) states that development 

should not threaten the residential character of the area and that new buildings 

should be well designed, in scale and character with neighbouring buildings, and 

should not deprive residents of light, privacy or security.   

More generally, Policy CS74 of the Core Strategy (Design Principles) expects high 

quality new development which respects, takes advantage of and enhances the 

distinctive features of the city including the townscape of its neighbourhoods.  It 

states that development should also contribute towards creating attractive, 

sustainable and successful neighbourhoods and help to transform the character of 

physical environments that have become run down and are lacking in 

distinctiveness. 

Page 26



 

The application site is located within the boundary of the Manor Neighbourhood 

Development Framework (NDF), which covers the neighbourhoods of Upper 

Manor, Lower Manor and Castlebeck.  The Manor NDF was approved and adopted 

as a material consideration by Cabinet in October 2007 and is intended to guide 

physical changes and public investment in the area over a 10 year period. 

One of the main aims of the Manor NDF is to create a more mixed-income 

community by attracting new people to live in the Manor and integrating new 

residents with the existing community, in such a way as to address the needs of 

the existing community and the isolation that some particularly disadvantaged 

people and groups suffer from. 

The NDF admits that challenging negative perceptions is going to be difficult and 

turning around the fortunes of the Manor is going to need a strong ‘brand’ and 

powerful marketing. The challenge for this plan is to guide and co-ordinate 

investment in the area to ensure that the Manor becomes a more desirable place 

to live. 

The application site is identified in the Manor NDF as a key node and gateway 

location which needs to be strengthened.  It notes that, when approaching the area 

from the north, there is no sense of arrival, key buildings are removed from the 

road frontage and nearby two-storey housing is of average quality and fails to 

provide an appropriate sense of enclosure. 

 

Design and Access 

Key issues with the previously refused planning application for a replacement store 

were its failure to respond to the Prince of Wales Road and Castlebeck Road 

frontages in a sufficiently positive manner.  This was exacerbated by the loss of the 

two semi-detached houses which front onto Prince of Wales Road and their 

replacement with a new electricity substation.  Moreover, the proposed materials 

were not considered to reflect local character or to be of sufficient quality.   

Prior to the submission of the current proposals, Lidl explored a number of 

alternative options for the development of a new store, including a store at the very 

northern end of the site.  Whilst the latter could have provided a positive and robust 

response to the street frontages and fullfilled the Manor NDFs requirement to 

reinforce this key node and gateway location, it was constrained by Lidl’s 

standardised layouts (Lidl is a deep discount retailer that saves money by 

standardising the layout and construction of their stores and then passes the 

savings on to their customers).  It also raised a number of practical issues including 

less car parking and awkward servicing arrangements.  As a result this option had 

to be discounted. 

 

Page 27



 

The proposed replacement store is located in a similar position to the existing 

building, but it has a much larger footprint and has been pushed as far north as is 

practicable in order to increase its presence onto Prince of Wales Road and 

Castlebeck Avenue.  The monopitched roof has also been handed, with the highest 

point now closer to Prince of Wales Road, which again enhances its presence at 

the junction of Prince of Wales Road and Castlebeck Avenue. 

As before, the proposed new store incorporates white render, large format silver 

cladding panels and an aluminium standing seam clad mono-pitched roof.  Good 

sized red brick piers break up the white render at ground level into panels along 

each elevation whilst the north facing front elevation of the store now incorporates 

contemporary full height glazing in order to provide a much more attractive 

shopping environment and increase levels of natural light inside the store.  

The majority of the building will be used for retail sales. The remainder of the 

ground floor of the store will include a stock warehouse, freezer room, bakery, 

manager’s office, staff room and toilets, with a staff training facility provided at first 

floor level.  The increase in net sales floorspace, over and above the existing store, 

is 641 square metres. This, Lidl says, allows them to display their goods more 

effectively, enhancing the operational efficiency of the store and providing a more 

spacious and attractive shopping environment for customers. 

The existing car park would be extended and re-arranged and, as amended, a new 

stepped and landscaped pedestrian route created at the north west corner of the 

car park adjacent the junction of Castlebeck Avenue and Prince of Wales Road.  

The existing pedestrian access from Castlebeck Avenue would be renewed and a 

landscaped strip, which will incorporate trees, bounds the car park around the 

perimeter of the site. 

In contrast to their last submission, the applicant has willingly explored all options 

for the site and, whilst not dramatically different to the refused scheme the currently 

proposed replacement store is much improved.  In particular design changes to the 

roof and front elevation, and pushing the footprint northward, has given the store 

greater street presence on this key gateway site.  The redesign of the front 

elevation of the store and the introduction of full height glazing also gives the 

development a feeling of improved quality, while the relocation of the electricity 

sub-station removes visual clutter and allows for greater landscape improvements 

(in addition to removing any impact on health implications). 

 

Sustainability 

Policy CS63 of the Core Strategy (Responses to Climate Change) seeks to reduce 

the city’s impact on climate change through a variety of measures including the 

promotion of developments in easily accessible locations, encouraging walking, 

Page 28



 

cycling and the use of public transport, designing development to increase energy 

efficiency, reduce energy consumption and minimise waste, and promoting 

developments that generate renewable energy.   

Similarly, policy CS 64 (Climate Change, Resources and Sustainable Design of 

Developments) requires all new buildings to be energy efficient and to use 

resources sustainably and advises that all new developments over 500 square 

metres gross internal floorspace should achieve a BREEAM rating of ‘very good’ 

and encourages the use of green roofs as a sustainable drainage technique. 

Policy CS 65 (Renewable Energy and Carbon Reduction) also requires new 

developments to provide 10% of their energy needs from decentralised and 

renewable or low carbon energy.  

These requirements are also embodied in ‘Climate Change and Design’ a 

supplementary planning document (SPD) which forms part of Sheffield’s 

Development Framework and which was adopted in March 2011.  In addition, 

Guideline CC1 of the SPD says that, provided they are compatible with other 

design and conservation considerations, and where viable, green roofs will also be 

required on all larger developments and encouraged on all other developments.   

The store is directly linked, via a stepped pedestrian route, to the adjacent bus stop 

on Castlebeck Avenue and an additional pedestrian route from Prince of Wales 

Road has been incorporated into the scheme which improves the link between the 

store and the nearby Local Shopping Centre.  In addition, a covered shelter for 

cycles is provided close to the store entrance. 

The applicant has submitted a report prepared by Nathaniel Lichfield and Partners 

which sets out the sustainability principles incorporated into the development.  

Amongst other things, the report describes Lidl’s commitment to using ‘green’ 

materials, to exceeding the minimum Building Regulations standards for thermal 

performance and so reducing the heating requirements of the building, and to 

using energy efficient heating and lighting systems.  

Lidl will produce a Site Waste Management Plan to demonstrate how waste will be 

managed during the construction phase of the development. This will include 

recycling waste where possible.  Lidl has also developed an Integrated Waste 

Management Policy for their stores, in order to maximise waste reduction. 

Lidl also commits to undertaking further investigations to assess the capabilities of 

a range of decentralised and renewable or low carbon energy sources to provide a 

proportion of the site’s energy needs, if feasible and viable. A condition is therefore 

proposed requiring details of how a minimum of 10% of the predicted energy needs 

of the of the completed development being obtained from decentralised and 

renewable or low carbon energy. 

 

Page 29



 

Residential Amenity 

The proposed development involves the demolition of numbers 322 and 324 Prince 

of Wales Road and the extension of the car park close to the boundary of 320 

Prince of Wales Road.  This part of the site lies within a designated Housing Area 

and Policy H14 of the UDP (Conditions on Development in Housing Areas) states 

that development should not threaten the residential character of the area or lead 

to air pollution, noise, smell or other nuisance to people living nearby.   

The extended car park is considered to be a less suitable neighbour than the 

existing dwellinghouse in terms of maintaining the residential character of the area 

and it will clearly impact upon the outlook of the occupier of number 320.  However, 

a 2 metre high close board fence will be erected along the common boundary 

between number 320 and the extended car park.  This will be supplemented on the 

car park side by a 2 metre wide landscape strip which, it is envisaged, will allow the 

planting of a substantial green screen.  On this basis it is considered that potential 

noise and fumes from vehicles using the car park would not significantly harm the 

amenities of the occupants of number 320 Prince of Wales Road. 

In order that noise from the service and delivery bay on the western side of the 

new store does not harm the amenities of occupants of dwellinghouses facing onto 

Prince of Wales Road, the installation of a 3 metre high acoustic fence along the 

western site boundary, adjacent Bonsall Lane, is reserved by condition.  This will 

also provide some visual screening to the store, though the rear elevations of 

properties fronting prince of Wales Road are approximately 27 metres from the 

boundary of the site.  A condition is also proposed restricting opening and servicing 

hours so that noise will not disturn neighbours during the night time hours. 

 

Highway Issues 

As the proposed store projects further to the north of the site, it is proposed to 

move the position of the vehicular access to the car park approximately 10m to the 

north. This should have no adverse impact on the adjoining highway network.   

Unfortunately, replacing the existing store with a new one in a similar location limits 

the applicant’s ability to address the dangers caused by the sharing of the 

customer and service access.  It is considered that customers having to cross the 

delivery vehicle route to access the store when a delivery vehicle is driving forward 

or reversing is detrimental to pedestrian safety and would ideally be avoided.  

However, as Lidl states that the new store will only have one delivery a day, and as 

the site could not accommodate a separate service access, the shared access is 

not considered to be sufficient reason to refuse planning permission, particularly as 

the potential dangers could be prevented if deliveries are managed appropriately.  

Page 30



 

Therefore, a condition is proposed requiring the submission of a delivery 

management plan detailing the supervision of all delivery operations. 

 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 

As described above, the amended proposals for a replacement food retail store at 

the junction of Prince of Wales Road and Castlebeck Road are considered to 

respond sufficiently to the issues raised by the previously refused scheme.  

Though perhaps not ideal, changes to the design and location of the store address 

the need for a more positive presence on this key gateway site.  Amenity issues 

have been addressed, in particular the electricity substation has been moved away 

from residential properties, and subject to the management of deliveries, it is felt 

that the shared access to the site should not be a danger to pedestrian safety.  It is 

therefore recommended that Member grant planning permission subject to the 

proposed conditions. 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



 

 
Case Number 

 
14/02725/FUL  
 

Application Type Full Planning Application 
 

Proposal Application to vary condition 19 (opening hours) to 
agree permanent opeing hours until 0130 hours on 
Thursdays, Fridays and Saturdays and Sundays before 
Bank Holidays, and until 0030 hours on Mondays, 
Tuesdays, Wednesdays and Sundays other than 
before Bank Holidays (Application under Section 73 to 
vary condition 19 (opening hours) as imposed by 
planning permission 06/00412/FUL) 
 

Location Maggie May's 
23 - 27 Trippet Lane 
Sheffield 
S1 4FG 
 

Date Received 14/07/2014 
 

Team City Centre and East 
 

Applicant/Agent Thatone Limited T/A Maggie May 
 

Recommendation Grant Conditionally 
 

 
Subject to: 
 
1 The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 

from the date of this decision. 
  
 Reason: In order to comply with the requirements of the Town and Country 

Planning Act and in order to comply with the requirements of the Planning 
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Regulations 1990. 

 
2 Notwithstanding the drawings hereby approved and before the development 

is commenced further revised details showing the following shall have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority 

  
 (a) Improved masonry articulation to the central bay of the main façade to 

Trippet Lane 
 (b) Introduction of glazing to the façade above the main entrance between 

Nos 23 and 27 
 (c) Full construction detail of the black slate cladding to the ground floor of 

the Trippet Lane façade and string course above 
 (d) Replacement of pressed metal fascia beneath the black slate cladding 

with brickwork or stone work infill panels 

Page 32



 

 (e) Improved articulation of main grouped windows through use of deeper 
mullions and transoms 

 (f) Improved emphasis to central bay windows using visually stronger 
frames 

 (g) Improved quality and colour of cladding to upper level 
   
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
3 Before the development is commenced, full details of the following external 

materials shall have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority: 

        
 (a) Facing bricks 
 (b) Roofing slates 
 (c) Eaves details 
 (d) Heads and sills to windows 
 (e) External panelling 
 (f) Balconies 
  
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
4 The facing brickwork shall not be constructed except in accordance with an 

approved sample panel, which shall have been erected on site and shall 
have received the prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities of the locality. 
 
5 No building on the site shall be demolished nor works carried out (except for 

those works specified the Method Statement dated 24 November 2004 by 
Capita Symonds) before evidence of a binding legal contract for the 
redevelopment of the site has been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority, and before planning permission has been granted for 
such redevelopment. 

  
 Reason: In order to enhance the setting of the listed building. 
 
6 Before the development is commenced full details of the proposed external 

works (including retention of existing stone flags, kerbs, steps, and cellar 
heads and reinstatement of the footways in Sheffield Slab and granite kerb) 
shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In order to enhance the setting of the listed buildings. 
 
7 The development shall not be occupied unless the large rear windows to 

Flats 2, 3, 5 and 6 have been provided as shown on the drawings hereby 
approved, and such large rear windows shall thereafter be retained. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of the 

proposed dwellings. 
 

Page 33



 

8 The ground floor commercial unit shall not at any time be used as a shop 
(Class A1 of the Schedule to the Town and Country (Use Classes) Order 
1987) 

   
 Reason: In order to protect shopping facilities within the Central Shopping 

Area in the city centre. 
 
9 The residential accommodation hereby permitted shall not be occupied 

unless a scheme of sound attenuation works has been installed and 
thereafter retained.  Such scheme of works shall: 

  
 (a) Be based on the findings of an approved noise survey of the application 

site, including an approved method statement for the noise survey, 
 (b) Be capable of achieving the following noise levels: 
 Bedrooms: LAeq 15 minutes - 35 dB (2300 to 0700 hours), 
 Living Rooms: LAeq 15 minutes - 45 dB (0700 to 2300 hours), 
 (c) Include a system of alternative acoustically treated ventilation to all 

habitable rooms. 
  
 Before the scheme of sound attenuation works is installed full details thereof 

shall first have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of amenities of the future residential occupiers of 

the building. 
 
10 Before the use of the building for Food and Drink purposes (Use Class A4) 

is commenced a scheme of sound attenuation works shall have been 
installed and thereafter retained.  Such a scheme of works shall 

  
 (a) Be based on the findings of an approved noise survey of the application 

site, including an approved method statement for the noise survey, 
 (b) Be capable of restricting noise breakout from the Use Class A4 use to 

the street to levels not exceeding: 
 (i) the background noise levels by more than 1 dBA when  measured as a     

15 minute LAeq, 
 (ii) any octave band centre frequency by more than 1 dB when measured as 

a 15 minute Leq,  
 (c) Be capable of restricting noise breakout from the Class A4 use to the 

flats above to levels complying with the following: 
 Bedrooms:  Noise Rating Curve NR25 (2300 to 0700 hours), 
 Living Rooms:  Noise Rating Curve NR35  (0700 to 2300 hours), 
  
 (These Noise Rating Curves should be achieved for every measurement 

period when measured as a 15 minute linear Leq at the octave band centre 
frequencies 31.5 kHz to 8 kHz).   

  
 Before such scheme of works is installed full details thereof shall first have 

been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
  

Page 34



 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and of the residential 
occupiers of the building. 

 
11 Before the use of the building for the purposes hereby permitted is 

commenced, written confirmation shall be given to the Local Planning 
Authority that the approved scheme of sound attenuation works has been 
installed in the building in full. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
12 Before the use of the development is commenced a Validation Test of the 

sound attenuation works shall have been carried out and the results 
submitted to and approved by the Local planning Authority.  Such Validation 
Test shall: 

  
 (a) Be carried out in accordance with an approved method statement, 
 (b) Demonstrate that the specified noise levels have been achieved. 
  
 In the event that the specified noise levels have not been achieved, then 

notwithstanding the sound attenuation works thus far approved, a further 
scheme of sound attenuation works capable of achieving the specified noise 
levels and recommended by an acoustic consultant shall be submitted to 
and approved by the Local planning Authority before the use of the 
development is commenced.  Such further scheme of works shall be 
installed as approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the 
use is commenced and shall thereafter be retained. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
13 No externally mounted plant or equipment for heating, cooling or ventilation 

purposes, nor grilles, ducts, vents for similar internal equipment, shall be 
fitted to the building unless full details thereof have first been submitted to 
and approved by the Local planning Authority, and once installed such plant 
or equipment should not be altered without prior written approval of the 
Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
14 No amplified sound shall be played within the building except through an in-

house amplified sound system fitted with a sound limiter, the settings of 
which shall have received the prior written approval of the Local Planning 
Authority. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 

Page 35



 

15 No movement, sorting, or removal of waste bottles, materials or other 
articles, nor movement of skips, shall be carried on outside the building 
within the site of the development between 2300 hours and 0700 hours 
Monday to Saturday and 2300 to 0900 Hours Sundays and Public Holidays.
  

 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 
adjoining property. 

 
16 No deliveries to the building shall be carried out between the hours of 2300 

to 0700 hours Monday to Saturday and 2300 to 0900 hours Sundays and 
Public Holidays. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
17 The fire exit doors shall only be used as an emergency exit and shall not at 

any other time be left standing open. 
  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
18 All opening windows/shutters shall be kept closed between 2000 hours and 

0700 hours, and shall not at any time be opened otherwise without the prior 
written approval of the Local Planning Authority. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
19 The ground floor bar unit shall be used in accordance with the following 

restrictions:  
  
 a) The premises shall be used only between 0800 hours and 0030 hours the 

following day on Sundays to Wednesdays.  
  
 b) The premises shall be used only between 0800 hours and 0130 hours the 

following day on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays immediately 
before a Public Holiday. 

  
 c) After 2300 hours on each day, and until commencement of the operation 

on the following day, customers shall not enter or leave the ground floor unit 
unless through the door to Holly Street except in an emergency. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 

adjoining property. 
 
20 Prior to the use commencing, full details of a system of fume extraction shall 

be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
This system shall provide a flue terminating 1 metre above the sixth floor 
window level and shall be fitted with a low resistance cowl. 

  

Page 36



 

 Reason: In the interests of the amenities of the locality and occupiers of 
adjoining property. 

 
21 The development shall not be used unless at least 25% of the residential 

accommodation has been provided with Mobility Housing facilities consisting 
of the following: 

     
 (a) Single doors giving 800 mm clear opening width, within a 900 mm 

structural opening, 
 (b) Any double doors giving 800 mm clear opening width to each door leaf, 

all set within an 1800 mm structural opening 
 (c) Staircases to ambulant disabled standards 
 (d) Corridors 1200 mm wide 
 (e) Easy access facilities to shower units for people using wheelchairs. 
   
  
 Reason: To ensure ease of access and facilities for disabled persons at all 

times. 
 
22 The Food and Drink unit shall not be used unless the access and facilities 

for people with disabilities shown on the plans have been provided in 
accordance with the approved plans and thereafter such access and 
facilities shall be retained. 

  
 Reason: To ensure ease of access for disabled persons at all times. 
 
23 Before the development is commenced, details of Public Art work forming 

part of the development shall have been submitted to and approved by the 
Local Planning Authority and the development shall not be used unless such 
Public Art work has been provided as approved and thereafter retained. 

  
 Reason: In order to enhance the development in line with the Council's 

public Art Scheme. 
 
24 Before the development is commenced, a Phase 1 and Phase 2 Risk 

Assessment, to characterise the contamination on site and propose a 
remediation scheme to ensure safe redevelopment, shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  
Should any previously unsuspected contamination be encountered during 
the development, the Local Planning Authority shall be notified within one 
working day of its discovery, together with any proposed amendments to the 
proposed remediation scheme.  The development shall then be carried out 
in accordance with the approved scheme and the applicant shall provide 
written verification that the remediation has been completed as approved, 
within 21 days of the approved scheme being completed. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of the health and safety of the occupiers of the 

proposed development. 
 

Page 37



 

25 No development shall take place within the site until the applicant has 
secured the implementation of a programme of archaeological work in 
accordance with a written scheme of investigation which has been 
submitted by the applicant and approved by the Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: To ensure that any archaeological remains present, whether 

standing or buried, are preserved - either by being left in situ or recorded 
and removed in accordance with an agreed method, before they are 
damaged or destroyed. 

 
26 The development shall not be occupied unless the adjoining footways have 

been extended to 2m width minimum and marked on the ground in 
accordance with details, which shall have received the prior written approval 
of the Local Planning Authority. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of traffic safety and the amenities of the locality. 
 
27 Before the development is commenced further details of cycle parking 

provision shall have been submitted to and approved by the Local planning 
Authority, and the development shall not be used unless such cycle parking 
accommodation has been provided in accordance with such approved 
details which shall thereafter be retained. 

   
 Reason: In the interests of sustainable transport. 
 
28 Before the building is occupied a proposal to incorporate interpretive 

information about the history of the buildings within the site shall have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.  The 
approved interpretive information shall be implemented on site within an 
agreed timescale. 

  
 Reason: In the interests of public amenity. 
 
29 The new build part of the development shall not be occupied until Nos 23 

and 27 Trippet Lane have been rebuilt and made ready for occupation. 
  
 Reason: In order to protect the original fabric of the building and the 

character and appearance of the Conservation Area. 
 
 
Attention is drawn to the following directives: 
 
1. The applicant is advised that condition Nos. 1-18 and 20-29 were imposed 

by planning permission No. 06/00412/FUL and are reproduced on this 
notice to provide you with a complete record of all conditions, regardless of 
whether some may have already been discharged. 

 
2. The Local Planning Authority has worked with the applicant in a positive and 

proactive manner based on seeking solutions to problems arising in relation 
to dealing with a planning application. 

Page 38



 

Site Location 

 
 
© Crown copyright and database rights 2013 Ordnance Survey 10018816 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 39



 

LOCATION AND PROPOSAL 

This application relates to a ground floor bar (Maggie Mays) located on Trippet 

Lane and Holly Street in the City Centre. At present the unit must close at 00:30 

hours and the applicant is seeking to vary Condition 19 in order to operate between 

the following hours on a permanent basis:  

- 08:00 hours to 00:30 hours the following day on Sundays to Wednesdays. 

 

- 08:00 hours to 01:30 hours the following day on Thursdays, Fridays, 

Saturdays and Sundays before bank holidays. 

The applicant is also seeking another alteration to Condition 19 to allow dancing 

between the hours of 00:30 and 01:30.  

There are a number of residential units in and around the bar, including on the 

upper floors of this listed building and adjacent in Broughton House (at the junction 

of West Street and Holly Street). West Street is located approximately 35 metres to 

the south. 

The site is located within a Fringe Industry and  Business Area as defined by the 

adopted Sheffield Unitary Development Plan (UDP). 

 

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY  

Condition 19 was originally imposed in 2006 (06/00412/FUL) and formed part of a 

wider application for partial demolition, conversion and erection of a 7 storey 

building to form drinking establishment (Class A4) and accommodation for 87 

persons in 13 shared flats. Condition 19 read as follows: 

The ground floor unit shall not be used except between 0900 hours and 0130 

hours on any day in accordance with the following:  

(a) Between 0030 and 0130 hours on Mondays, Tuesdays, Wednesdays and 

Sundays other than before Bank Holidays the unit shall not be used for any 

purpose. 

(b) Between 0030 and 0130 hours the unit shall not be used for dancing. 

(c) Between 0030 and 0130 hours no amplified sound shall be played in the unit 

without prior written approval from the Local Planning Authority of the sound 

volume. 

(d) After 2300 hours on each day, and until commencement of the operation on the 

following day, customers shall not enter or leave the ground floor unit unless 

through the door to Holly Street except in an emergency. 

Page 40



 

(e) The unit shall not be used for any purpose after 0030 hours after the expiry of a 

period of 3 years from the commencement of its use or occupation of the first 

residential unit within the development, whichever is the sooner. 

Subsequently two applications have been approved to extend the opening hours 

for a temporary period. The most recent application was approved under reference 

11/03580/FUL and allowed opening hours until 01:30 on Thursdays, Fridays, 

Saturdays and Bank Holiday Mondays for a twelve month period. 

 

SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS 

5 Representations have been received from residents and letting agents 

associated with Broughton House. This property is set to the south of the bar and 

fronts West Street. A further representation has been received from the student 

accommodation set above the bar. These representations state that the existing 

premises/customers create undue noise and anti-social behaviour for surrounding 

residents. This includes:  

- People smoking and drinking in the street and car park entrance to 

Broughton House, which is located on Holly Street. 

- Music from the bar when people are coming and going. 

- Litter. 

- The extended hours will affect the ability of residents to sleep. 

 

PLANNING ASSESSMENT 

Impact on Residential Amenity 

Sheffield Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 

Section b) within Policy IB9: Conditions on Development in Industry and Business 

Areas within the UDP states that new development or change of use applications 

should not cause residents or visitors in any hotel, hostel, residential institution or 

housing to suffer from unacceptable living conditions. 

City Centre Living Strategy (CCLS) 

The CCLS was approved by Cabinet in 2004 and forms Supplementary Planning 

Guidance. One of the key aims of this document is to ensure that potential conflict 

between residential uses and late night venues is managed. 

Interim Planning Guidance on Night Time Uses (IPG)  

The IPG aims to find an appropriate balance between city centre living and a 

vibrant night-time economy, in order to ensure a successful city centre in both 

Page 41



 

senses. This document was approved by Cabinet in 2005 and identifies two areas 

of the city centre in which the amenity of existing and future residents should 

particularly be protected from undue noise and disturbance after a reasonable time 

of night. The IPG identifies 00.30 hours as this reasonable time of night. The 

application site does not fall within one such area and must therefore be judged on 

its individual merits.  

Guideline 2 within the IPG states that leisure and food and drink uses will only be 

allowed if: 

a) Conditions for nearby residents and people working in the area will not be 

harmed by noise breakout, traffic, parking on nearby streets, odours, street noise 

or general disturbance. 

b) They are unlikely to lead to anti-social behaviour that would disturb residents, 

workers or users of the area. 

In considering this application the impact of the proposed increase in the opening 

hours on the amenity of surrounding residential occupiers is the primary concern.  

Given the large number of residential units in the immediate area and as the bar is 

not on one of the principle streets for late night uses, such as West Street, it was 

considered reasonable to apply more restrictive opening hours than are evident in 

other locations. In this respect 00:30 was considered to be a reasonable hour, 

given that the IPG advocates this in areas with high residential amenity value.  

When considering two subsequent applications to extend the hours of opening to 

01:30 hours on Thursdays, Fridays, Saturdays and Sundays before Bank Holidays, 

it was considered reasonable to allow this for temporary periods of twelve months. 

The rationale behind temporary extensions is to allow a better understanding of 

whether operating the unit later into the night would suitably protect the amenity of 

surrounding residents.   

In relation to these extensions of time and the continuing operation, the Council’s 

Environmental Protection Team has confirmed there have been no complaints in 

relation to noise breakout or general noise and disturbance from the venue since 

2010. In addition, the unit is in close proximity to West Street (35 metres to the 

south), which does already create relatively high background noise levels.  

Clearly there have been representations from residents in relation to this proposal 

and concerns generally relate to noise and disturbance outside the venue. These 

matters have been discussed with the applicant who denies any of the activity in 

and around Broughton House is associated with Maggie Mays. Given the lack of 

recorded complaints, it seems likely such instances are currently minimal. In 

addition, if matters such as drinking and smoking in the street do proliferate these 

can be tackled through the licencing process. 

Page 42



 

A further factor to consider is the former Cabanas bar/restaurant set directly across 

Trippet Lane. Although this venue has recently become a restaurant it has had 

planning permission to open during the same hours that are currently being applied 

for here since 2006. This results in people already being in and around the area 

until 01:30 hours. 

The element of the condition limiting dancing after a certain hour is excessively 

restrictive and would be extremely difficult to enforce. As music breakout from the 

venue is controlled there is considered to be no need for such a condition. 

 

RESPONSE TO REPRESENTATIONS 

No evidence has been provided demonstrating that litter is being created as a 

result of this operation. This is more likely to occur from a hot food takeaway 

operation. 

The venue has acoustic lobbies and no complaints have been made to the 

Council’s Environmental Protection Service to suggest noise breakout is a 

problem. In addition planning conditions are in place restricting noise breakout from 

the venue so if this problem is evidenced in the future action can be taken. 

 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 

Given the lack of recorded complaints, instances relating to general noise and 

disturbance in the street appear minimal. In addition, the venue has acoustic 

lobbies and planning conditions are in place restricting noise breakout. 

A further factor to consider is the former Cubanas bar/restaurant set directly across 

Trippet Lane and the proximity of West Street. These add to the general 

background noise levels already evident in the area. 

In light of the above the proposal is recommended for approval. 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Regeneration & Development Services 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:    18th November 2014 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   Enforcement Report 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Abby Wilson 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
Unauthorised timber and plastic canopy on front of 414 London Road facing 
London Road and Glover Road 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations   
The canopy is considered to have a detrimental effect on the visual amenities 
of the street scene and contrary to policy BE5 and S10 of the UDP. 
 
Recommendations: 
That authority be given to the Director of Regeneration and Development 
Services or Head of Planning to take all necessary steps, including 
enforcement action and the institution of legal proceedings, if necessary, to 
secure the removal of the timber and plastic canopy. 
 

The Head of Planning is delegated to vary the action authorised in order to 
achieve the objectives hereby confirmed, including taking action to resolve 
any associated breaches of planning control. 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 

   
  

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Agenda Item 8

Page 45



REGENERATION & 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 
 PLANNING AND 
 HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE 
 DATE 18 NOV 2014 
 
 
 
ENFORCEMENT REPORT 
 
ERECTION OF AN UNAUTHORISED TIMBER AND PLASTIC CANOPY ON 
THE FRONT OF 414 LONDON ROAD FACING LONDON ROAD AND 
GLOVER ROAD, S2 

1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 

 
1.1 To inform committee members of a breach of the Planning Regulations 

and to make recommendations on any further action required. 
 
2. BACKGROUND  
 
2.1 414 London Road is a traditionally built two storey end terrace property 

lying on the corner of London Road and Glover Road. The ground floor 
is used as a grocery store, the first floor and attic space are used as 
residential.  

 
2.2 The site is located in a Housing Area as identified in the Unitary 

Development Plan (UDP). The terrace on which it is sited is 
predominantly residential in use, as is Glover Road. The entrance to 
Lowfield Primary School lies on the opposite side of London Road and 
a Citizens Advice Bureau on the opposite corner of London Road and 
Glover Road. 

 
2.3 The area is on the periphery of the District Shopping Area to the North 

on London Road and the local Shopping Area to the West on 
Abbeydale Road as identified in the UDP. Several unauthorised 
canopies have appeared in these nearby shopping areas and, to date, 
enforcement action has been successful in securing the removal of 3 
unauthorised canopies (2007) and authority has been given to enforce 
against a further two canopies in September 2014. A further report 
appears on this agenda relating to additional canopies. 

 
2.4 The canopy has been erected on the forecourt of the property facing 

both London Road and Glover Road. It has a wooden frame with a 
clear plastic corrugated roof. Expanding foam has been used 
extensively to fill gaps and is highly visible around the structure. 
Plywood sides have also been added under the eaves to partially 
enclose the structure. The top of the canopy is not uniform and fits 
around the existing projecting shop sign. 

 

Page 46



2.5 A written complaint was received from a member of the general public 
on the 09th September 2014.  Since this date a further two written 
complaints have been received from members of the public. 

 
2.6 An initial letter was sent to both the business owner and the property 

owner. It informing them that planning permission is required to erect a 
canopy on the front of the premises but due to the detrimental effect 
the canopy has on the visual amenities of the street scene, planning 
permission would not be granted in this case and the canopy should be 
removed within 14 days. The letter also advised that an application 
would be welcomed for an alternative canopy. 

 
2.7 A representative of the business responded to the letter, they 

questioned why they could not apply for permission for the existing 
canopy or if there were any alterations to the canopy that would be 
considered more favourably. The advice given was that a retractable 
canopy would be considered in this location but the existing structure, 
with or without alterations could not be supported although they are 
within their rights to submit an application.  

 
2.8 The business owner informed planning enforcement that they intend to 

submit a planning application for the existing structure, against the 
recommendations of planning enforcement. To date no application has 
been submitted.  

 
3 ASSESSMENT OF BREACH OF CONTROL 
 
3.1 The property is located within the Housing Area as defined within the 

UDP. 
 
3.2 Unitary Development Plan Policy H14 ‘Conditions on Development in 

Housing Areas’ states that new buildings and extensions are well 
designed and would be in scale and character with neighbouring 
buildings. 

 
3.3 Unitary Development Plan Policy BE5 ‘Building Design and Siting’ 

states that good design and the use of good quality materials will be 
expected in all new and refurbished buildings and extensions and all 
extensions should respect the scale, from, detail and materials of the 
original building. 

 
3.4 Although canopies are often a traditional feature of shops, they tend to 

be the retractable metal and canvas fascia type that one associates 
with shops of this type and age. The function of the current canopy is to 
protect food displayed for sale from the elements. A traditional canopy, 
of the kind described above, could achieve that aim without harm to the 
street scene. 

 
3.5 However the canopy in question is a timber post and frame structure 

with a plastic corrugated roof with expanding foam used to seal gaps, 

Page 47



and is a permanent feature on the property’s forecourt making it 
visually intrusive and is of a makeshift appearance. It also does not 
respect character of the property to which it is attached, or that of other 
properties in the immediate vicinity from a point of view of the materials 
used in its construction. Therefore the canopy is considered to have a 
detrimental effect on the visual amenities of the street scene and 
contrary to policy BE5 and S10 of the UDP. 

 
3.6 The photographs, below, show the property in question and 

demonstrate the visual harm that is unacceptable in this area. 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

London Road 

Glover Road 

Page 48



 
 

 
 

Glover Road 

Page 49



 
 
 
 
 

4. REPRESENTATIONS. 
 
4.1 There have been three written complaints with regards to the canopy 

and there concern being that the canopy  
 
5.       ASSESSMENT OF ENFORCEMENT OPTIONS 
 
5.2 Section 172 of the Act provides for the service of an enforcement 

notice (EN). In this case such a notice would require the removal of the 
canopy to make good the harm caused by the unauthorised 
development. There is a right to appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, 
against the service of an Enforcement Notice. However, it is 
considered that the Council would be able to successfully defend any 
such appeal. 

 
6 EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 
 
6.1 There are no equal opportunity issues arising from the 

recommendations in this report.   
   
7 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no additional financial implications expected as a result of 

this report. If an appeal is made against the enforcement notice, costs 
can be awarded against the Council if it is shown that they have 
behaved “unreasonably” in the appeal process, it is uncommon that 
this will happen. However, in the unlikely event compensation is paid, it 
would be met from the planning revenue budget. 
 

8.0  RECOMMENDATIONS 

Page 50



 
8.1 That the Director of Regeneration & Development Services or Head of 

Planning be authorised to take any appropriate action including, if 
necessary, enforcement action and the institution of legal proceedings 
to secure the removal of the unauthorised canopy at 414 London Road. 

 

8.2 The Head of Planning is delegated to vary the action authorised in            
order to achieve the objectives hereby confirmed, including taking 
action to resolve any associated breaches of planning control. 

 
 
 

Site Plan 
 

 

 

 
 
Maria Duffy                                                                 18/11/2014 
Head of Planning Service     
 

Page 51



Page 52

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Report of:   Director of Regeneration & Development Services 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Date:     18 November 2014 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Subject:   RECORD OF PLANNING APPEALS   
                                           SUBMISSIONS & DECISIONS 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Author of Report:  Claire Woods 0114 2734219 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:  
 
List of all newly submitted planning appeals and decisions received, together 
with a brief summary of the Inspector’s reason for the decision 
 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Reasons for Recommendations   
   
 
Recommendations: 
 
To Note 
______________________________________________________________ 
 
Background Papers: 
 

 
Category of Report: OPEN 
 
 
 

   

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL 
Planning & Highways 

Committee 

Agenda Item 9

Page 53



DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 
      REPORT TO PLANNING &  
      HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE 
      18 November 2014 
 
 
1.0   RECORD OF PLANNING APPEALS SUBMISSIONS AND DECISIONS   
 

This report provides a schedule of all newly submitted planning appeals and 
decisions received, together with a brief summary of the Secretary of State’s 
reasons for the decisions. 
 
 
2.0  NEW APPEALS RECEIVED 
 

(i) An appeal has been submitted to the Secretary of State against the 
delegated decision of the City Council to grant conditionally planning 
permission for erection of two detached dwellinghouses including access at  
Curtilage Of 36 And 38 High Street Beighton Sheffield S20 1EA (Case No 
14/02620/FUL) 
 

 
 
3.0   APPEALS DECISIONS - DISMISSED 
 

(i) An appeal against the delegated decision of the Council to refuse planning 
consent for demolition of existing garage and erection of a two-storey 
garage/gym and decked area at 74 Chesterfield Road Sheffield S8 0RS 
(Case No 14/01482/FUL) 
 

Officer Comment:- 
The Inspector considered the main issues to be:- 
i) The effect on the character and appearance of the area; and  
ii) The effect on living conditions of neighbours, with particular regard to 

visual impact. 
 
He noted the appeal site was sloping land at the rear of a semi-detached 
property, set back from the main road in a predominantly residential area.  He 
considered the setback was such that the rear of the site was not particularly 
visible from public areas, but the tree growth gave a green character. 
 
On i) the new structure would be ‘very substantial’ in his view within 8 metres 
from the rear of the dwellings, of much greater scale than the host property 
and of a more commercial or even industrial appearance. Although he noted 
the step down in levels he considered the expansive mono-pitch roof and 
significant width and depth of the proposal would for a ‘discordant’ and 
‘dominant’ element.   
 
He noted that the design was to support use by a disabled person but felt the 

Page 54



structure had a poor design and a cramped relationship with the host dwelling, 
and as such was overdevelopment. He dismissed the appellant’s claims that 
other buildings in the locality set a precedent. 
 
On ii) the structure was to be set just 1m from the neighbour’s boundary, but 
the roof structure would overhang to the boundary resulting in a structure at 
least 3m high when viewed from the neighbour’s land and owing to the levels 
would result in a dominant feature on the boundary and an overbearing visual 
impact. He noted this would be contrary to both the NPPF which seeks a good 
standard of amenity for all existing and future occupants, and the Council’s 
Supplementary Planning Guidance – Designing House Extensions. 
 
For those reasons he dismissed the appeal. 
 

(ii) An appeal against the delegated decision of the Council to refuse planning 
consent for erection of 2 detached dwellings with associated garages and 
landscaping at Land At Rear Of 1 To 5 Austin Close Loxley Road Sheffield 
S6 6QD (Case No 13/04044/FUL) 
 

Officer Comment:- 
 
The main consideration in the appeal was the adequacy of the access to the 
site and its implications for highway safety.. 
 
The Planning Inspector considered that, although a swept path analysis 
indicated that a removals van could enter and leave the site in forward gear, 
she had reservations that this took into account the vertical alignment of the 
proposed access and was unconvinced that the manoeuvre could be carried 
out safely particularly in winter, in conditions of ice, snow and hail . 
 
Although the length of the driveway would be such as to allow a driver to gain 
control and so not be a safety issue on Loxley Road, she did consider it would 
be a hazard to pedestrians and other users of the access. The provision of 
managed grit bins did not satisfy the Inspector that this matter could be 
satisfactorily managed and enforced.   
 
The fact that there are many roads in Sheffield that have that have acute 
gradients, she did not consider it good planning to accept deficiencies in an 
access based on the prevalence of others in the locality, most especially 
where, as here, there are potential hazards to the safety of road users. 
 
The provision of a segregated path for pedestrians would overcome one of 
the previous Inspector’s concerns but, due to its gradient and  the 
incorporation of steps, it would remain difficult to access for the less ambulant. 
Such as the disabled, the elderly and mothers with prams. 
 
The Inspector considered that the site would be difficult to serve in a safe 
fashion and so was contrary to UDP policies BE9, BE10, H14 and CS policies 
C51 and also the NPPF which seeks to provide safe and suitable access for 
all users. 

Page 55



 
Third parties questioned the principle of developing the site but the Inspector 
said that although it may have been originally an open landscaped area, it is a 
suitable site for housing.  However, this did not outweigh her concerns over 
the lack of a safe access, and so the appeal was dismissed. 
 

(iii) An appeal against the delegated decision of the Council to refuse planning 
consent for erection of non-illuminated hoarding to gable wall at British 
Telecom Telephone House Charter Square Sheffield S1 4HS (Case No 
14/02003/HOARD) 
 

Officer Comment:-  
 
The Inspector agreed with the Council that a large poster display would be in 
sharp contrast to and would detract from the stark architectural form of the 
building and would cause visual harm to the building and the street scene, 
given the prominent position of the building on a busy junction. She concluded 
that the advertisement would be harmful to visual amenity. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Maria Duffy 
Acting Head of Planning                          18 November 2014 
  
 
 

Page 56


	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	7 Applications Under Various Acts/Regulations
	Plan apps

	8 Enforcement of Planning Control:  414 London Road
	9 Record of Planning Appeal Submissions and Decisions

